
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 

Friday, 28 January 2022 

 

Tel: 01993 861522 

e-mail - democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk 

 

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

You are summoned to a meeting of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee which will be held 

in the Council Chamber, Woodgreen, Witney OX28 1NB on Monday, 7 February 2022 at 2.00 

pm. 
 

 
Giles Hughes 

Chief Executive 

 

 

To: Members of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 

Councillors: Jeff Haine (Chairman), Julian Cooper (Vice-Chair), Andrew Beaney, Nathalie Chapple, 

Merilyn Davies, Ted Fenton, David Jackson, Alex Postan, Geoff Saul, Dean Temple 

and Alex Wilson. 

 

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Cabinet, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed. 

 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 8) 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2022. 

 

2.   Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations from Members of the Committee on any items to be 

considered at the meeting 

 

4.   Applications for Development (Pages 9 - 46) 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development, details of which are set out in the attached 

schedule. 

Recommendation: 
That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations of the 

Business Manager – Development Management. 

 

Page Application Number Address Officer 

 

11 – 28 

 

21/03836/FUL 

Tennis Courts, 

Beaconsfield Hall, Shipton 

Under Wychwood 

 

Sarah Hegerty 

 

29 – 34 

 

21/03859/FUL 

Vicarage Field, Church 

Road, Chipping Norton 

 

James Nelson 

 

35 – 40 

 

21/03893/FUL 

Building Referred To As 

‘Asgard’, South East Of 

Valhalla, Church Street, 

Stonesfield 

 

Kelly Murray 

 

41 - 44 

 

21/04066/HHD 

2 Church Street, Fifield, 

Chipping Norton 

 

Briony Farmer 

 
 

5.   Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions (Pages 47 - 64) 

 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of applications determined under delegated powers and 

any appeal decisions. 

Recommendation: 

That the reports be noted. 

 

 

 

Page 2



WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Minutes of the meeting of the 

Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

Held in the Council Chamber at 2.00 pm on Monday, 10 January 2022 

PRESENT 

Councillors: Jeff Haine (Chairman), Julian Cooper (Vice-Chair), Andrew Beaney, Merilyn 

Davies, Ted Fenton, David Jackson, Elizabeth Poskitt, Alex Postan, Geoff Saul, Dean Temple 

and Alex Wilson. 

Officers:  Joan Desmond (Principal Planner), Phil Shaw (Business Manager - Development 

Management), Amy Bridgewater-Carnall (Democratic Services Manager) and Michelle Ouzman 

(Strategic Support Officer). 

46 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

The minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2021 were approved and signed by the 

Chairman as a correct record, subject to the following amendments: 

The fifth paragraph on the first page of the minutes should read “…noted that the site was 

located in the middle of Bladon”; 

The spelling of Councillor Postan’s name be amended on pages 4 and 6. 

47 Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

Councillor Poskitt substituted for Councillor Chapple. 

48 Declarations of Interest  

Agenda Item 4 – Applications for Development – 21/03159/FUL – Diddly Squat Farm Shop 

Councillor Postan declared an interest in the application because he was an acquaintance of 

the applicant, although he had not spoken to him for approximately twenty years. 

 

Agenda Item 5 – Applications Determined under Delegated Powers – 21/03001/FUL 

Councillor Cooper declared an interest in the above decision because he was a member of 

Woodstock Sports and Social Club. 

49 Applications for Development  

The Principal Planner, Mrs Desmond, introduced the application for the conversion of an 

existing building to create a café / restaurant, together with associated landscaping works and 

the provision of parking; creation of a new access; realignment of the existing access and a 

new storage compound. 

 

Members also noted the information contained in the follow on report, which advised that 14 

additional objection letters had been received, raising similar issues as previous objectors.  In 

addition two further letters of support had been received. 

 

Mrs Desmond advised that since the Additional Representations report had been distributed 

three further letters of objection and one letter of support had been received.  Members also 

noted that the measurements detailed in paragraph 5.28 needed clarification and paragraph 

5.31 contained the up to date information as per the application.  Mrs Desmond summarised 

Public Document Pack

Page 1Page 3

Agenda Item 1



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

10/January2022 

the application, highlighting the proposed new access, permission for a 60 to 70 space car 

park, landscaping proposals and woodland planting. 

 

The following people addressed the Committee: 

 

Mr Streeten, on behalf of Mr and Mrs Dewar, objecting; and 

Mr Clarkson, the applicant. 

 

A copy of the submission read out by Mr Streeten is attached as an appendix to the original 

copy of these minutes. 

 

In supporting the application, Mr Clarkson noted that much had been made of the area as an 

Area of Natural Beauty (AONB) but felt that historically, farmers had played a large part in 

maintaining this.  He highlighted the financial difficulties facing farmers who were having to 

look to diversification to survive; advised that the farm was in discussions with neighbouring 

farmers, looking at serving locally produced food in the restaurant and were working together 

as a cooperative.  He stated that the lambing shed was already in existence and nothing new 

was being built.  He referred to Local Plan Policy OS2 which supported the re-use of 

appropriate buildings and reiterated that the proposal would encourage and enhance local 

employment opportunities and tourism.  Mr Clarkson highlighted the lack of objections from 

the Parish Council, Thames Valley Police, Ecology, Archaeology, the County Council and the 

Cotswold Conservation Board.  In conclusion, he signposted members to the positive 

comments made by the Council’s Business Development officer and requested that Members 

support the proposal. 

 

Following a question from Councillor Davies, Mr Clarkson explained why the lambing shed 

was no longer in use and advised that the farm’s sheep flock had been merged with a 

neighbouring farm. 

 

Councillor Poskitt asked for clarification on the statement made relating to the lack of an 

objection from Thames Valley Police (TVP) as she had been under the impression they were 

not satisfied with the level of lighting on site.  Mr Clarkson explained that discussions had been 

ongoing with TVP and they appeared to be content with revised lighting proposals. 

 

Councillor Saul sought further detail on the produce to be used and felt that the business plan 

lacked information in this area.  Mr Clarkson assured the meeting that they were in 

discussions with many neighbouring and local farmers and provided an example of a local dairy 

farmer who had recently stated that if it had not been for the business she received from the 

farm shop, she would have gone out of business.  The Chairman agreed to let Mr Ireland, the 

land agent, provide further detail about the Business Plan.  Mr Ireland advised that parties 

already interested in joining the cooperative included farmers from Shipton-under-Wychwood, 

Leafield, Pudlicote, Hook Norton, Combe and Long Compton.  It was envisaged that they 

would provide a variety of produce including potatoes, lamb, beef and chickens and this would 

add greater value for the farm and for the producers. 

Page 2Page 4



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

10/January2022 

 

The Principal Planner continued with her presentation, detailed the Planning Policies relevant 

to the application and outlined the recommended reasons for refusal.   

 

The Ward Councillor for Chadlington, Councillor Temple, advised that this was a difficult case 

and reminded Members of the difficulties faced by the working classes to find employment 

over the years.  He applauded the potential offer of local jobs and the increase in tourism and 

felt that Policy EH1 could be seen favourably.  However, he also noted that great weight 

needed to be afforded to areas of scenic beauty.  Councillor Temple stated that he had 

received many messages about this application but was determined that it should only be 

decided on planning law.  He therefore concluded that the benefits afforded were not enough 

to outweigh the harm to the AONB.  He therefore, proposed that the application be refused 

in line with officers recommendations. 

 

This was seconded by Councillor Cooper, who concurred with the comments made.  He felt 

there were sufficient planning grounds to refuse the application, and reiterated the affect this 

would have on the AONB. 

 

Councillor Postan addressed the meeting and advised that having read the recommendations, 

he did not feel these matched the information contained in the report and was surprised at 

the refusal reasons.  He advised that he had undertaken his own site visits and described the 

view of the site driving up from Chadlington.  Councillor Postan felt that the nearby caravan 

park was objectionable compared to this proposal and provided examples as to how the car 

park bookings could be managed electronically.  In addition, further measures could be put in 

place to include appropriate signage directing traffic.  He felt that the light pollution created by 
the caravan park was relevant and encouraged Members to support a scheme which would 

encourage food production, help to tackle climate change and provide employment prospects 

and economic benefits.  Councillor Postan advised that should the proposal to refuse fall, he 

would propose approval subject to relevant conditions. 

 

In response, Councillor Haine referred Members to paragraph 176 of the National Planning 

Policy Framework which advised that great weight should be given to conserving and 

enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in National Parks. 

 

In seconding Councillor Postan’s counter proposal, Councillor Davies advised that she agreed 

with the applicant’s comments and felt it was important to support farms and the opportunity 

of cooperatives.  She highlighted the unprecedented hardship that farmers had been facing and 

stated her support for the application and the opportunities it afforded. 

 

Councillor Jackson received clarification from officers on the current opening hours of the 

farm shop and the proposed operational hours of the café / restaurant. 

 

Councillor Saul addressed the meeting and felt that there was a cogent argument that the 

application was policy compliant, however he had concerns that this was appropriate 

diversification or an application for a stand- alone restaurant, as suggested by objectors.  He 

Page 3Page 5



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

10/January2022 

had been reassured by the comments made by Mr Ireland but felt that a more detailed 

business report was needed.  In conclusion, Councillor Saul advised that he felt there would 

be a harmful impact on the scenic beauty and tranquillity of the area and a 70 space car park 

was not appropriate in an AONB. 

 

Councillor Poskitt queried the location of the bin store, the entrance and egress openings of 

the building.  She had concerns about the glazing and lighting on site and queried why the 

restaurant had to be located on this farm if it was a cooperative.  She noted that the caravan 

park was shaded by trees, which reduced its impact on the surrounding area.  In response to 

the lighting query, Mrs Desmond confirmed the Police’s comments and advised that she was 

not aware of any additional discussions.  

 

Councillor Beaney addressed Members and noted the Policies that he felt were relevant.  He 

made reference to the traffic concerns and how the number of vehicles visiting the site was 

highlighted in the photographs.  In addition, he felt that the location of the proposal in the 

AONB meant that the bar was set higher than normal.  In response, Mrs Desmond signposted 

Members to paragraph 5.15 of the report and reiterated the impact, scale and nature of the 

proposed use in an AONB. 

 

Councillor Davies highlighted that residents living in or near an AONB still needed 

employment opportunities, did not agree with the ‘dark skies’ argument and felt that longer 

opening hours would help mitigate the traffic problems.  She urged Members to read WODC 

Business Development officer’s comments.  

 

In response, Councillor Cooper advised that the comments made relating to ‘dark skies’ were 
very relevant.  He reminded Members that the AONB drew visitors to the area and provided 

employment.  He concluded by stating that if the wrong decision was made, a development 

would be around for a very long time. 

 

Councillor Postan spoke again about his proposal to include a booking scheme for the site and 

reiterated his concerns about the neighbouring caravan park which he felt ‘dwarfed this 

scheme’.  In addition, he felt that the proposed landscaping would further shield the caravan 

park from view. 

 

Prior to the vote, the Business Manager – Development Management, Phil Shaw, addressed 

the meeting to  summarise the officer’s position on the application and comment upon a 

number of issues raised by the Members.  He reminded Members that officers had concluded 

the scheme was too big for such a sensitive location and, whilst he concurred with the 

comments made about the importance of employment opportunities, this proposal would 

cause harm that had to be accorded great weight in a planning sense.  He advised the meeting 

that not having regard of the AONB would be a mistake and stated that the Council would 

have no control over delivery of any cooperative being suggested and that as such it should 

only be given limited weight.  He noted that in any event  the cooperative appeared to be 

including farms from a large area and as such that this was not the only location within that 

area for this development.   

Page 4Page 6



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

10/January2022 

 

Mr Shaw did not agree with the arguments made by Councillor Postan relating to the caravan 

park setting a precedent for the development and reminded Members that any harm to the 

area that may be considered to arise from that site, should not be added to by approving this 

application.  He concluded by stating that officers did not support the argument that this was 

farm diversification due to the scale and impact but that he did feel there was an acceptable 

smaller scheme to be found, however, the impact of this application was too great to meet 

WODC and national policy. 

 

The proposal made by Councillor Temple, and seconded by Councillor Cooper that the 

application be refused as per officers recommendations, was then put to the vote and was 

carried.  

 

Refused 

50 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions  

The report outlining the Delegated Decisions taken since the last meeting were considered 

and it was 

 

Resolved that the report be noted. 

 

The Meeting closed at 3.02 pm 

 

CHAIRMAN 

Page 5Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date: 7th February 2022 

 

 
REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER-DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development details of which are set out in the following pages. 

 

Recommendations: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Strategic Director. 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in the light of 

observations received between the preparation of the reports etc and the date of the meeting. 

 

List of Background Papers 
 
 

All documents, including forms, plans, consultations and representations on each application, but 

excluding any document, which in the opinion of the ‘proper officer’ discloses exempt information as 

defined in Section 1001 of the Local Government Act 1972.        

                                                 

Please note that: 

1. Observations received after the reports in this schedule were prepared will be summarised in a 

document which will be published late on the last working day before the meeting and available 

at the meeting or from www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings  

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings


Page Application Number Address Officer 

 

11 – 28 

 

21/03836/FUL 

 

Tennis Courts, Beaconsfield Hall, Shipton Under 

Wychwood 

 

 

Sarah Hegerty 

 

29 – 34 

 

 

21/03859/FUL Vicarage Field, Church Road, Chipping Norton 

 

James Nelson 

 

35 - 40 21/03893/FUL Building Referred To As ‘Asgard’, South East Of 

Valhalla, Church Street, Stonesfield 

 

Kelly Murray 

 

41 - 44 

 

21/04066/HHD 2 Church Street, Fifield, Chipping Norton 

 

Briony Farmer 

 

Page 10



 

Application Number 21/03836/FUL 

Site Address Tennis Courts 

Beaconsfield Hall 

Station Road 

Shipton Under Wychwood 

Oxfordshire 

 

 

Date 26th January 2022 

Officer Sarah Hegerty 

Officer Recommendations Refuse 

Parish Shipton Under Wychwood Parish Council 

Grid Reference 427804 E       218146 N 

Committee Date 7th February 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Erection of 9 lighting columns to provide floodlighting for tennis courts 1 and 2. 

 

Page 11



Applicant Details: 

Wychwoods Lawn Tennis Club 

Tennis Courts 

Beaconsfield Hall 

Station Road 

Shipton -under-Wychwood 

Oxon OX7 6BQ 

 

1. CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council Shipton Parish Council objects on the following basis. 

The site lies within the Shipton under Wychwood Conservation Area 

and in the Cotswold AONB. The lighting that is proposed will be 

visible from a wide area across the AONB and interfere with dark 

skies, contrary to the policies of the AONB. 

The proposal also contravenes policies EH1, EH2, EH3, EH8, EH10, 

CE5, OS2, OS4. EH1 Enhancing natural beauty and wildlife. EH2 To 

avoid light and noise pollution and maintain existing level of tranquility 

and dark sky quality. 

EH3 Parish Council notes that there is little difference between the 

current proposals and previous applications that were refused. Similar 

biodiversity reason for objection therefore still stands. EH8 Lighting 

should be unobtrusive and not excessive. Harmful to amenity of near 

residents. EH10 Not be detrimental to views within or into the area. 

CE5 Regard to dark skies. OS2 Landscape scenic beauty - protect and 

enhance. OS4 Respect historic landscape character and conserve 

habitat of biodiversity value 

 

 

WODC Env Health - Uplands My comments relate purely to the potential for Statutory Nuisance 

from light due to this proposal and not to any effect on wildlife. 

Having reviewed the report supplied by Signify Commercial UK 

Limited, and other information submitted as part of the application, I 

am of the opinion that if the lighting is built to the design specified 

with the light at the angles described in the report, then there will be 

minimal risk of Statutory Nuisance from the proposed lighting. 

Neighbours may well be aware that the lighting is switched on but the 

light overspill will be such that there will be no light shining directly 

towards neighbouring residential properties to cause a Statutory 

Nuisance. 

I can therefore find no reason to object to this proposal on the 

grounds of potential Statutory Nuisance from the proposed lighting. 

 

 

Cotswolds Conservation Board For the reasons outlined below, the Board considers that the 

proposed development is contrary to policies EH1, EH2 and EH8 of 

the West Oxfordshire Local Plan (WOLP) 2031 and CE5 of the 

Cotswolds AONB Management Plan 2018-2023 and therefore objects 

to this application. 

In reaching its planning decision, the local planning authority (LPA) has 

Page 12



a statutory duty to have regard to the purpose of conserving and 

enhancing the natural beauty of the National Landscape. 

2 The Board recommends that, in fulfilling this 'duty of regard', the 

LPA should: (i) ensure that planning decisions are consistent with 

relevant national and local planning policy and guidance; and (ii) take 

into account the following Board publications: 

 Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) 

Management Plan 2018-2023 (link); 

 Cotswolds AONB Landscape Character Assessment (link) 

particularly, in this instance, with 

 regards to Landscape Character Type (LCT) 17 (Pastoral 

Lowland Vale), which the site is located within, and LCT 16 

(Broad Floodplain Valley), which the site is adjacent to; 

 Cotswolds AONB Landscape Strategy and Guidelines (link) 

particularly, in this instance, with regards to LCT 17 (link), 

including Section 17.8 and LCT 16 (link), including Section 

16.5; 

 Cotswolds AONB Local Distinctiveness and Landscape 

Change (link); 

 Cotswolds Conservation Board Position Statements (link) 

particularly, in this instance, with regards to Dark Skies and 

Artificial Light Position Statement (link) and its appendices 

(link 1, link 2, and link 3). 

 

The Board is aware that previous applications for floodlighting on this 

site have been refused. These include the application refused earlier 

this year (application reference 21/00261/FUL), the Council's first 

reason for refusal stating that the "proposed floodlighting at this 

prominent site, within the Shipton Under Wychwood Conservation 

Area and the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, would 

give rise to an incongruous and intrusive form of development, which 

would fail to preserve or enhance the character and appearance of 

the Conservation Area or the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty, and when lit would be visually obtrusive to 

surrounding residential and local amenity. As such the proposal is 

considered contrary to policies OS2, OS4, EH1, EH8 and EH10 of 

The West Oxfordshire Local Plan (2031), Policy CE5 'Dark Skies' of 

the Cotswolds Conservation Boards Management Plan and Section 15 

of the NPPF". WOLP 2031 policy EH1 states that when determining 

development proposals within the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty (AONB) and proposals which would affect its setting, 

great weight will be given to conserving and enhancing the area's 

natural beauty, landscape and countryside, including its wildlife and 

heritage. This will include consideration of any harm to the 

contribution that the settlement makes to the scenic beauty of the 

AONB. Further, paragraph 176 of the NPPF 2021 requires great 

weight to be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic 

beauty in Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty. Policy EH1 further 

states the Board's AONB Management Plan and guidance documents 

are material considerations in decisions relevant to the AONB. Policy 

Page 13



CE5 'Dark Skies' of the AONB Management Plan states that proposals 

that are likely to impact on the dark skies of the Cotswolds National 

Landscape should have regard to these dark skies, by seeking to (i) 

avoid and (ii) minimise light pollution. Measures should be taken to 

increase the area of dark skies in the Cotswolds AONB by (i) 

removing and (ii) reducing existing sources of light pollution. 

 

Section 17.8 of the Cotswolds AONB Landscape Strategy and 

Guidelines for LCT 17 referred to above identifies the introduction of 

lit elements into characteristically dark landscapes as a potential 

adverse landscape implication. As such, the introduction of 9 x 6.2m 

high floodlights into what is a characteristically dark landscape would 

not be consistent with the Landscape Strategy and Guidelines and, by 

extension, the policies of the Cotswolds AONB Management Plan 

2018-2023. The proposal would also not be consistent with policy 

EH2 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 which states that 

"proposed development should avoid causing pollution, especially 

noise and light, which has an adverse impact upon landscape character 

and should incorporate measures to maintain or improve the existing 

level of tranquility and dark-sky quality, reversing existing pollution 

where possible" and policy EH8 which will only allow external lighting 

proposals where "the proposal would not have a detrimental effect 

on intrinsically dark landscapes". The applicant states that the revised 

proposals have been amended to overcome the concerns raised 

previously and conform to the ILP 'Guidance notes for the reduction 

of obtrusive light for an E1 zone (Intrinsically dark areas including 

Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty) whilst mitigating the effect 

lighting will have on wildlife. We would defer to the assessment of the 

Council's specialist Environmental Health and Biodiversity Officers in 

consideration of these matters. 

 

However, even if the proposal does comply with this guidance, there 

would still be the issue of introducing lit elements into the intrinsically 

dark, night-time landscape. The Board considers that the proposed 

development and associated light spillage and glow will comprise a 

new source of light pollution within the immediate and wider 

surrounding area, failing to avoid and/or reduce existing levels of light 

within the AONB and potentially adversely impacting on the dark 

skies of the Cotswolds National Landscape, which are one of the 

area's 'special qualities'. Whilst the Board recognises its duty to seek 

to foster the economic and social well-being of people living in the 

Cotswolds National Landscape, including their recreation, this is only 

in so far as is consistent with the great weight that must be given to 

the conservation and enhancement of the landscape and natural 

scenic beauty of the National Landscape. 

 

 

WODC - Sports From a sport and leisure perspective we support this application. 

 

In the UK we are fortunate to experience long daytime hours during 

Page 14



the summer months for the pursuit of sport and leisure. Although 

during the winter months this can be limited to as little as 7 hours a 

day. The provision of sports lighting on tennis courts enables use 

throughout the year and is identified by the National Governing Body 

of tennis; the Lawn Tennis Association (LTA), as a key priority for 

growing participation nationally. The LTA also reports that the 

addition of sports lighting allows for a 35% increase in available court 

time on an annual basis. 

 

At present in West Oxfordshire, only 14 of the 74 tennis courts in 

the district are serviced by sports lighting, representing just 19% of 

the provision and that this lack of sports lighting on courts is limiting 

recreational and causal demands. 

 

Furthermore, the COVID -19 pandemic has had an impact on 

people's exercise habits, with many still choosing to exercise 

outdoors, due to concerns and fears about using indoor facilities. This 

making high quality, accessible outdoor facilities fundamental for our 

communities, as they play an important role in increasing participation 

and encouraging a healthy lifestyle. 

 

 

Conservation Officer The applicant has taken on-board our previous comments - providing 

a Landscape Assessment with photographic survey of the site and 

surrounds. This includes an assessment of the conservation area, its 

setting and views. In general, they have considered mitigation 

measures including usage times, no lighting above the horizontal, and 

no upward spill, columns painted dark green. And in regard to the 

Conservation Area they have referred to lights levels no more than 

400 lux, single court lighting and motion sensors which automatically 

switch off when not being used, dimmers allow lux to be reduced to 

300 lux for coaching and compact light fittings and slim line light 

columns. 

I am satisfied that the applicant has explored the options to support 

their application ensuring that the conservation area, its setting and 

views are preserved as much as possible, therefore, I raise no 

objection. 

 

 

Ecologist Biodiversity recommendation: objection in line with responses to the 

previous planning applications for floodlighting at this location. The 

proposal does not comply with Local Plan policy EH3 In summary, the 

following information has been submitted with the planning 

application. 

Ecological Impact Assessment - EcIA report dated 13/10/2021 (an 

update of a previous report dated 2nd March 2020) by Midland 

Ecology. 

 

The Executive Summary section of the report (page 4) states, "The 

scheme for these has been designed to comply with protocols in ILP 

Page 15



Guidance Note 08/18 - Bats and Artificial Lighting in the UK produced 

jointly by the Institute of Lighting Professionals and the Bat 

Conservation Trust" - but there is limited evidence of how this has 

been considered. 

Table 3 (page 18) concludes that the western hedgerow "…falls 

outside of the works area however, and the proposed lighting design 

is highly unlikely to result in the increased illumination of it to a 

significant extent. Due to these considerations, the potential for 

impacts on foraging/commuting bats is classed as negligible." 

The adjacent building (Beaconsfield Hall) is identified as having 

moderate potential for roosting bats, but Table 3 concludes that the 

potential roost features are limited to the eastern side of the building 

and therefore that the lighting will not result in the illumination of 

these. Impacts on roosting bats are therefore classed as negligible. 

However, no detailed bat surveys have been carried out. 

 

There is an existing record of badgers from the residential garden to 

the west (dated 2021) and the survey referred to in Table 3 on page 

19 is unlikely to have been a thorough assessment of the garden 

(where latrines are present). 

There are also existing records of great crested newts from the 

residential garden to the west (dated 2021) within the pond identified 

as being "below average" for this species in Table 3 (page 20) of the 

Report. I have seen a photograph taken by the resident and I can 

confirm that it is of a great crested newt. 

 

Apart from the confirmed presence of great crested newts from the 

adjacent residential property, the proposal has similar impacts to the 

previous planning applications despite some minor changes to the 

Proposal in terms of the type of lighting and number of columns. 

Biodiversity mitigation strategy October 2021 Midland Ecology. 

 

The strategy identifies the key mitigation measures (section 1.1) as 

being: 

 Retention of existing vegetation on site 

 Lighting to comply with ILP Guidance Note 08/18 - Bats and 

artificial lighting in the UK 

 Hours of use Monday to Friday inc will be 09.00hrs to 

21.00hrs. Saturday and Sunday use will be from 09.00hrs to 

19.00hrs 

 Use of the lights to be restricted to between 1st October and 

15th May 

  

Key aspects of this design (section 2.1.1) are: 

 

1. LED targeted direction lighting - to restrict the spillage of light into 

surrounding areas. 

2. Specific selected light fittings - to further restrict the area of 

illumination including no light emitted above the horizontal (see 

report by Signify), producing warm white light, 3000k. 

Page 16



3. A master control switch - which will control the daily permitted 

times of illumination (Monday to Friday inc will be 09.00hrs to 

21.00hrs. Saturday and Sunday use will be from 09.00hrs to 19.00hrs). 

4. Independent individual court controls - which will ensure that light 

emitted is restricted to the occupied court only. 

5. Automatic non activity sensors - will switch court lights off if a 

court is vacated early. 

6. A reduction in the light facility - which will enable certain tennis 

activities e.g. physical tennis exercises, coaching and non-competitive 

play to be carried out at a reduced lighting level. 

It also states "These design measures aim to minimise lighting to that 

purely necessary for the tennis courts to be used, and to avoid light 

spill on to adjacent habitats. The lighting modelling shows that even in 

the absence of the western boundary hedgerow (as its presence could 

not be modelled), the spill would result in 0 Lux onto the adjacent 

property (including the pond situated there)." 

 

Issues 

The Planning Statement states that the proposed development would 

have no adverse effect on ecology and summarises the mitigation 

measures included as listed below, however, in accordance with the  

ILP 

Guidance Note 08/18, the requirement is for warm white light of less 

than 2,700K with regard to limiting the impact on bats. It would not 

be possible to use floodlights of 2,700K to light the tennis courts. 

 Lights off at maximum 9pm weekdays and 7pm weekends 

 The lights will only be used between 1 October and 15 May 

 The proposed lighting would be maximum of 400 Lux 

 Using warm white rather than cool white lights to negate any 

effect on wildlife 

 Integral louvres significantly reduce lux spillage and source 

intensity 

 

The Signify technical report about the proposed floodlighting does not 

refer to the ILP Guidance Note 08/18 with regard to the impact on 

bats and it is therefore uncertain whether the recommendations from 

this have been properly considered as part of the design. Although it 

is understood that the aim is "to ensure spill is kept to an absolute 

minimum", this may not be appropriate for the potential use of the 

hedgerow by bats. 

 

ILP Guidance Note 08/18 recommends lighting should be less than 

2,700 Kelvin and the current proposal is for floodlights at 3000K, 

which is the lowest possible level that could be used in order to 

maintain the lighting properties needed for tennis. 

 

The submission concludes that the control of light spillage is sufficient, 

however, the Iso Contour grid calculation on page 37 of the 

'Wychwood Tennis Club LED Floodlighting inc PDF Import' report 

dated 13-07-2021 shows that spillage would occur on the western 

Page 17



hedgerow at approx. 5 to 10 Lux. These are different values to the 

graphical table shown on page 36 where lux levels in the hedgerow 

would be between 1 and 19 Lux. The front page of the report notes 

that the nominal values shown in the report are based on precise 

calculations, but that "In practice the values may vary due to 

tolerances on luminaires, luminaire positioning, reflection properties 

and electrical supply". 

 

Control of spillage from the floodlights is not the only issue - there 

has been no consideration of the reflection of light from the surface 

of the tennis courts (the vertical plane) and the impact this might have 

on species using the western hedgerow, particularly bats and great 

crested newts. The reflection of light from the ground cannot be 

modelled and the Technical Summary report states "values may vary 

in practice due to reflection properties". 

 

The mitigation does not include the supplementary planting of 

additional shrubs within the hedgerow along western boundary to 

provide an additional screen to the adjacent pond. Although this was 

included in the previous application, it has been removed from the 

current proposals. It is assumed that this is because the parish council 

own and manage the hedgerow and there is no permission from them 

for the planting to take place. The aim of the planting was to provide 

a screen to the existing hedgerow using evergreen species or species 

that hold their leaves all year round, however, in the end it was felt 

that this was unlikely to be successful as part of the previous 

application due to the height restriction of the vegetation and the lack 

of landowner permission. 

 

No bat activity survey - there is evidence in the objections submitted 

that there are foraging bats using the western hedgerow and this also 

makes reference to bat roosts being present in the surrounding 

residential area. 

 

No great crested newt survey and presence of great crested newts in 

adjacent residential garden pond (3 derogation tests unlikely to be 

met due to other reasons for refusal) 

Insufficient survey for badgers - and evidence of presence from 

neighboring resident. 

 

Hedgerow connectivity - although the western hedgerow does not 

connect up with other hedgerows to the north, it is a link to the 

residential development to the north (Meadow Close), which has 

trees and hedgerows within it and a boundary hedgerow along its 

southern edge. This then connects to other hedgerows and trees 

along Meadow Lane to the east and the substantial hedgerows around 

Reynolds Close. These in turn are then clearly linked to the 

Littlestock Brook and the River Evenlode to the east, which provide 

ideal bat foraging and commuting habitat. 

 

Page 18



Proposal is contrary to Local Plan Policy EH3 I therefore conclude 

that there is little difference between the current proposals and 

previous applications that were refused. Similar biodiversity reason 

for refusal therefore still stands. 

 

Additional Comments 

In addition to the comments provided below, the presence of great 

crested newts in the pond to the west of the tennis courts would 

further decrease the seasonal use of the floodlights, as newts can be 

active from late Feb/early March (depending on weather conditions 

and temperature); so the use of the floodlights would have to be 

limited to the period from October to February, which only allows 

for 4 months of the year. Tennis playing in the evenings during the 

period March to May and in September would therefore be restricted 

further - in comparison to the mitigation strategy proposal for the 

lights to be turned off from 15th May to 1st October each calendar 

year. 

 

 

Sport England South East It is understood that the proposal prejudices the use, or leads to the 

loss of use, of land being used as a playing field or has been used as a 

playing field in the last five years, as defined in The Town and Country 

Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 

2015 (Statutory Instrument 2015 No. 595). The consultation with 

Sport England is therefore a statutory requirement. 

 

For clarity Sport England sought a legal opinion on the meaning of the 

'whole of the site' in respect of the Development Management 

Procedure Order and it was held that any outdoor sports facilities 

which in physical and functional terms formed part of the playing field 

fell under the definition of the 'whole of the site'. Therefore, the 

tennis courts form part of the playing field site. 

 

Sport England has considered the application in light of the National 

Planning Policy Framework (in particular Para. 97), and against its own 

playing fields policy, which states: 

 

'Sport England will oppose the granting of planning permission for any 

development which would lead to the loss of, or would prejudice the 

use of: 

 all or any part of a playing field 

or 

 land which has been used as a playing field and remains 

undeveloped 

or 

 land allocated for use as a playing field unless, in the 

judgement of Sport England, the development as a whole 

meets with one or more of five specific exceptions.' 

 

 

Page 19



The proposal is for the erection of 9 lighting columns to provide 

sports lighting for tennis courts 1 and 2. This is a resubmission of 

21/00261/FUL which was refused on the 6th April 2021. 

It was refused on 2 grounds: firstly on Conservation and AONB 

reasons and insufficient ecological survey information. 

 

I would draw your attention to a recent successful planning 

application for sports lighting in the Chiltern Hills Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty at Memorial Hall Playing Field in South 

Oxfordshire District Council, P20/S4912/FUL. Condition 4 attached 

to the decision notice (attached) was included to protect the AONB: 

The Correlated Colour Temperature for the MUGA lighting shall not 

exceed 3000 Kelvin (warm white) and the Correlated Colour 

Temperature for the wayfaring lighting shall not exceed 2700 Kelvin 

(very warm white) as set out in the Lighting Assessment Addendum 

1716-DFL-ELGXX-RP-EO-13001 P03 August 2021. The luminaires for 

the MUGA and the wayfaring lighting and the columns upon which 

that are mounted shall accord with specification for the luminaires 

and columns as set out in the Lighting Impact Assessment 1716-DFL-

LS-001 Rev E June 2021. 

 

Reason: To protect the appearance of the area and wider AONB 

landscape, the environment and wildlife, and local residents from light 

pollution in accordance with Policies ENV1 and ENV12 of the South 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035. 

 

It occurs to me that this condition could be applied to the application 

as the OptiVision LED gen 3.5 luminaire which has been specified and 

is part of the planning application, has a 3000k warm white operating 

temperature. 

 

Having read through the ecological information, whilst I am not an 

expert, it does seem more robust than the previous submission, than 

in the previous planning application. 

 

A pragmatic solution would be to limit the use of the lights which is 

suggested in the planning statement, together with the condition 

suggested about. 

 

Tennis is one of the sports which has grown and continues to grow 

during the recent pandemic and a number of tennis clubs have now 

waiting lists. Physical activity is key for an active lifestyle and is proven 

to aid to mental wellbeing. 

 

The applicants are correct in their design and access statement that 

lighting technology has come a long way since their previous 

application in 2004. Not only are the luminaires more energy efficient, 

via LEDs but the light spillage has be dramatically reduced. The use of 

timers reduce the chances of the sports lighting being left on 

accidently. 

Page 20



Sports lightning plays a critical role in the allowing sport to be played 

longer and safely in this country due to fluctuating daylight. 

 

Conclusion 

Having assessed the application, Sport England is satisfied that the 

proposed development meets exception 2 of our playing fields policy, 

in that: 

'The proposed development is for ancillary facilities supporting the 

principal use of the site as a playing field, and does not affect the 

quantity or quality of playing pitches or otherwise adversely affect 

their use.' 

This being the case, Sport England does not wish to raise an objection 

to this application. 

 

 

2. REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 111 Objection Comments have been received and are summarised as follows: 

 Light/noise pollution 

 traffic impacts 

 Prominence location in the valley 

 Biodiversity Impacts 

 AONB Impacts 

 Conservation Area Impacts 

 Alternative provision in the local area 

 

2.2 184 support comments have been received and are summarised as follows: 

 Health and Wellbeing 

 Community Asset 

 New proposal address previous concerns (Ecological/AONB/Heritage) 

 

2.3 Local Ward Member - Councillor Jake Acock has made the following comments: 

 

Let me begin by stating how disappointed I am to see this application, without any material changes, 

being discussed once more in the space of a few years. This is unfair on the residents of the 

Wychwoods who have had to deal with at least three consecutive applications. I hope for the residents 

and the tennis club that this is the last application, and the matter can finally be resolved once and for all.  

 

The key ground that this application should be refused is that it goes against the Local Plan, voted for by 

West Oxfordshire District Council in 2018. This plan stands until 2031. There are a number of policies 

that this application breaches:  

 

 Policy EH8: this states that any applications in a conservation area should ENCHANCE and, 

most importantly, CONSERVE the area. This application does not do that. Having 9 poles that 

are 6 metres high cannot be said to enhance or conserve. Similarly, the light spill in the evenings 

will be visible from many other places, including Chipping Norton and other villages surrounding 

the valley. 

 

Page 21



 Policy EH1: any application must conserve the landscape character. This application will cause 

light pollution and disturb natural wildlife because of the poles being erected and the light 

pollution.  

 

 Policy EH6: this policy states that external lights should be unobtrusive. It also states that lights 

should not result in excessive levels. This application does not meet this criterion because there 

would be obtrusive external light causing light pollution.  

 

For these reasons alone the application should be refused, as it does not meet the policies set out in 

West Oxfordshire's Local Plan.   

 

3. APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 Our latest application contains a significantly improved lighting design compared with our previous 

application and we have also included a range of limitations on light levels, hours, and seasonality.  

 

3.2 According to the LTA no other three court club without lighting club can equal our membership 

numbers. The club offers many different opportunities to play tennis for all standards of players together 

with a strong coaching programme.  

 

3.3 No other local club offers the same opportunities to such a large number to play tennis and the Club 

was voted Oxfordshire Tennis Club of the Year in 2011 and 2017 and has one of the only 70 accredited 

Level 5 Master Club Coaches in the UK.  

 

3.4 Participation in tennis at the club during April to September is very high and the court's booking 

system shows a high usage rate during these months, but this inevitably reduces substantially during the 

winter months through lack of light.  

 

3.5 The club fully appreciates there is inevitably some harm caused by having lights, but the latest 

technical lighting system proposed allows much reduced lighting levels, no upward spill, zero light 

beyond the court edge, dimmers, motion sensors and single court lighting - ensuring very modest impact 

in the AONB and Conservation Area. The scheme has also been independently assessed for ecology and 

has no negative impact on biodiversity and ecology.  

 

3.6 The modest harm is far outweighed in our view by the benefits.  

 

3.7 There are a significant and diverse range of social, health, community, sport, and related benefits that 

accrue not only to the large numbers of younger players and families in the village and other villages 

within easy reach, with open access to the public as well as members of the club.  

 

3.8 Key Benefits Include:  

 

 Provision to support a year-round tennis coaching programme from age 3 onwards  

 Increased participation in tennis during the winter months 

 Access to courts for longer in the winter months 

 Local sports facility without necessity to travel  

 Community access to tennis for the public through online smart gate access - Pay 

and play 

 Extra sports provision for the local community and school  

Page 22



 Extra sporting facility on an existing site located within the existing sports and 

recreation area without any need for public or external funding  

 Facility will be accessed by a wider audience particularly those that work throughout 

the week and juniors after school during the winter months  

 Significant improvement in community physical and mental health when outdoor 

activity is enabled 

 Improved access in diversity and inclusion for marginalized groups through provision 

of a year-round access Programme 

 The sports and recreation area where the club is located, will become a richer 

sports and health hub for the local village and nearby communities 

 

4. PLANNING POLICIES 

 

NPPF 2021 

E5NEW Local services and community facilities 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH8 Environmental protection 

E5NEW Local services and community facilities 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5. PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 The proposal is for the erection of 9 lighting columns to provide floodlighting for tennis courts 1 and 

2.  

 

5.2 The application relates to tennis courts associated with Wychwoods Tennis Club. The tennis courts 

are located adjacent to Beaconsfield Hall, which is in a prominent location along Station Road on the 

outskirts of the built up area of Shipton Under Wychwood with open countryside extending out from 

north East side of the site. The application site is slightly elevated above Station Road and is identified by 

its semi-rural character including open green space and loose vegetation. There are various public rights 

of way within the immediate vicinity of the site but also within the wider landscape which rises up as you 

travel northwards along station road.  The application site is within the Shipton Under Wychwood 

Conservation Area, the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and a Nature 

Improvement area as noted on Pg111 Map 8C of the WOLP. 

 

Relevant planning history 

 

19/02459/FUL - Installation of floodlights to provide lighting for two tennis courts - Withdrawn 

W2002/1192 - Erection of nine 6,7m high floodlights - Refused (appeal dismissed) 

21/00261/FUL - Erection of 9 lighting columns to provide floodlighting for tennis courts 1 and 2. - 

Refused on following grounds: 

The proposed floodlighting at this prominent site, within the Shipton Under Wychwood Conservation 

Area and the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, would give rise to an incongruous and 

intrusive form of development, which would fail to preserve or enhance the character and appearance of 

the Conservation Area or the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, and when lit would be 

Page 23



visually obtrusive to surrounding residential and local amenity. As such the proposal is considered 

contrary to policies OS2, OS4, EH1, EH8 and EH10 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan (2031), Policy 

CE5 'Dark Skies' of the Cotswolds conservation Boards Management plan and Section 15 of the NPPF. 

 

It is considered that insufficient ecological survey information, assessment or mitigation information has 

been submitted to enable the Local Planning Authority to fully assess the extent to which species and 

habitats (including bats and great crested newts) that are protected under the Wildlife and Countryside 

Act 1981 (as amended), The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 or listed as 

species/habitats of Principal Importance in s.41 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 

2006 may be affected by the proposed development. The Local Planning Authority is therefore unable to 

fully assess the development in respect of the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework 

(in particular Chapter 15); The Planning Practice Guidance; West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 Policy 

EH3, and ODPM Circular 06/2005. The Local Planning Authority is also unable to fully assess the 

proposals in the light of the three derogation tests, as described in the ODPM Circular 06/2005 and The 

Conservation of Species and Habitats Regulations 2017. Without sufficient information the Local 

Planning Authority may be unable to meets its statutory duty under the Natural Environment and Rural 

Communities Act 2006 to "have regard, …, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity". 

(currently in appeal process) 

 

5.3 The application is before planning sub-committee in line with the scheme of delegation due to the 

height of the floodlights being greater than 6m. 

 

5.4 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 Principle of development 

 Visual Amenity 

 Conservation Area 

 Wider AONB Landscape setting 

 Biodiversity 

 Residential Amenity 

 

Principle 

 

5.5 With regard to the principle of development, first OS2 states that the Villages "are suitable for 

limited development which respects the village character and local distinctiveness and would help to 

maintain the vitality of these communities." along with compliance with the general principles of 

development 

 

5.6 Policy E5 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan (2031) (WOLP) seeks to support the development 

and retention of local services and community facilities to meet local needs and to promote social 

wellbeing, interests, interaction and healthy inclusive communities. Further, section 8 of the NPPF 

(Promoting healthy and safe communities) encourages social interaction and the enabling and support of 

healthy lifestyles. 

 

Conservation Area 

 

5.7 Officers are required to take account of section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that, with respect to buildings or other land in a 

conservation area, special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 

character or appearance of that area. Further, the paragraphs of section 16 'Conserving and enhancing 

Page 24



the historic environment' of the NPPF are relevant to consideration of the application. Policy EH10 

states proposals for development in a Conservation Area or affecting the setting of a Conservation Area 

will be permitted where it can be shown to conserve or enhance the special interests, character, 

appearance and setting.   

 

5.8 The Conservation officer was consulted and has raised no objection to the proposal stating: 

"The applicant has taken on-board our previous comments - providing a Landscape Assessment with 

photographic survey of the site and surrounds.  This includes an assessment of the conservation area, its 

setting and views.  In general, they have considered mitigation measures including usage times, no 

lighting above the horizontal, and no upward spill, columns painted dark green. And in regard to the 

Conservation Area they have referred to lights levels no more than 400 lux, single court lighting and 

motion sensors which automatically switch off when not being used, dimmers allow lux to be reduced to 

300 lux for coaching and compact light fittings and slimline light columns. 

I am satisfied that the applicant has explored the options to support their application ensuring that the 

conservation area, its setting and views are preserved as much as possible."  

 

5.9 Based on the consultation response from the Conservation Officer, Officers are satisfied that the 

character of the Conservation Area would be preserved as much as possible and would result in  

'less than substantial harm' to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.  Paragraph  

202 of the NPPF provides that 'Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to 

the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of 

the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.' In this case, Officers 

consider that the public benefits, including social, health and well-being benefits would outweigh the less 

than substantial harm. 

 

Wider AONB & Landscape setting 

 

5.10 The site is located within the Cotswolds AONB wherein great weight should be given to 

conserving landscape and scenic beauty.  

Policy EH1 states that when determining development proposals within the Cotswolds Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and proposals which would affect its setting, great weight will be 

given to conserving and enhancing the area's natural beauty, landscape and countryside, including its 

wildlife and heritage. This will include consideration of any harm to the contribution that the settlement 

makes to the scenic beauty of the AONB. Further, Paragraph 172 of the NPPF 2018 requires great 

weight to be given to conserving and enhancing landscape beauty in Areas of Outstanding Natural 

Beauty. Policy EH1 further states the Cotswolds Conservation Board's management plan and guidance 

documents are material considerations in decisions relevant to the AONB. Policy CE5 'Dark Skies' of 

the Cotswolds Conservation Board's Management plan states that proposals that are likely to impact on 

the dark skies of the Cotswolds AONB should have regard to these dark skies, by seeking to (i) avoid 

and (ii) minimise light pollution. Measures should be taken to increase the area of dark skies in the 

Cotswolds AONB by (i) removing and (ii) reducing existing sources of light pollution.  

 

5.11 The Cotswold Conservation Board has objected to the application stating that the proposal will 

introduce "lit elements into the intrinsically dark, night-time landscape. The Board considers that the 

proposed development and associated light spillage and glow will comprise a new source of light 

pollution within the immediate and wider surrounding area, failing to avoid and/or reduce existing levels 

of light within the AONB and potentially adversely impacting on the dark skies of the Cotswolds 

National Landscape, which are one of the area's 'special qualities". 

 

Page 25



5.12 Whilst this revised application has sought to try and mitigate the impacts of the proposed 

floodlights, Officers still consider that the proposed development and associated light spillage/glow will 

contribute toward additional light pollution within the wider landscape (AONB) and negatively impact 

the dark skies and tranquil nature of the AONB. Therefore the proposed development is considered 

contrary to policy CE5 of the Cotswolds Conservation Board's Management Plan and would fail to 

either conserve or enhance the setting of the Cotswolds AONB which is contrary to EH1 and EH2 of 

the WOLP. 

 

Biodiversity 

 

5.13 With regard to ecology, concerns have been raised regarding the impact the proposed lighting will 

have on the biodiversity of the surrounding area. The Council's Biodiversity Officer was consulted as 

part of the planning process (summarised below) and has considered the information submitted within 

the proposal to be insufficient to recommend a positive determination of the application. The key points 

are summarised below: 

 

 The Planning Statement states that the proposed development would have no adverse effect on 

ecology and summarises the mitigation measures included as listed below, however, in 

accordance with the ILP Guidance Note 08/18, the requirement is for warm white light of less 

than 2,700K with regard to limiting the impact on bats. It would not be possible to use 

floodlights of 2,700K to light the tennis courts. The Signify technical report about the proposed 

floodlighting does not refer to the ILP Guidance Note 08/18 with regard to the impact on bats 

and it is therefore uncertain whether the recommendations from this have been properly 

considered as part of the design. Although it is understood that the aim is "to ensure spill is kept 

to an absolute minimum", this may not be appropriate for the potential use of the hedgerow by 

bats. The submission concludes that the control of light spillage is sufficient, however, the Iso 

Contour grid calculation on page 37 of the 'Wychwood Tennis Club LED Floodlighting inc PDF 

Import' report dated 13-07-2021 shows that spillage would occur on the western hedgerow at 

approx. 5 to 10 Lux. These are different values to the graphical table shown on page 36 where 

lux levels in the hedgerow would be between 1 and 19 Lux. The front page of the report notes 

that the nominal values shown in the report are based on precise calculations, but that "In 

practice the values may vary due to tolerances on luminaires, luminaire positioning, reflection 

properties and electrical supply".  

 Control of spillage from the floodlights is not the only issue, there has been no consideration of  

the reflection of light from the surface of the tennis courts (the vertical plane) and the impact 

this might have on species using the western hedgerow, particularly bats and great crested 

newts. The reflection of light from the ground cannot be modelled and the Technical Summary 

report states "values may vary in practice due to reflection properties".  

  The mitigation does not include the supplementary planting of additional shrubs within the 

hedgerow along western boundary to provide an additional screen to the adjacent pond.  

  No bat activity survey - there is evidence in the objections submitted that there are foraging 

bats using the western hedgerow and this also makes reference to bat roosts being present in 

the surrounding residential area. 

  No great crested newt survey and presence of great crested newts in adjacent residential 

garden pond (3 derogation tests unlikely to be met due to other reasons for refusal) 

  Insufficient survey for badgers - and evidence of presence from neighbouring resident.  

  Hedgerow connectivity - although the western hedgerow does not connect up with other 

hedgerows to the north, it is a link to the residential development to the north (Meadow 

Close), which has trees and hedgerows within it and a boundary hedgerow along its southern 

edge. This then connects to other hedgerows and trees along Meadow Lane to the east and the 

Page 26



substantial hedgerows around Reynolds Close. These in turn are then clearly linked to the 

Littlestock Brook and the River Evenlode to the east, which provide ideal bat foraging and 

commuting habitat.  

 

5.14 Notwithstanding the above, the Biodiversity officer also commented that: 

"the presence of great crested newts in the pond to the west of the tennis courts would further 

decrease the seasonal use of the floodlights, as newts can be active from late Feb/early March 

(depending on weather conditions and temperature); so the use of the floodlights would have to be 

limited to the period from October to February, which only allows for 4 months of the year." 

 

5.15 This further restriction on the operational months of the lights may render the floodlights to be an 

unviable proposal. 

 

5.16 Paragraph 8.16 of the WOLP states "Networks of natural habitats provide a particularly valuable 

resource and need protection and, where possible, reinforcement, integration and expansion, creating 

links between fragmented habitats to create greater coherence and resilience, not least because this will 

increase the opportunity for species and habitats to adapt to climate change and other pressures." These 

networks have been depicted on PG111; Figure 8c: Conservation Target Area and Nature Improvement 

Areas of the WOLP which identifies the sites location as part of the Nature Improvement Area (NIA). 

This proposal whilst small in scale is considered to negatively impact and fragment a biodiversity 

corridor along the boundary of the site.  

 

5.17 Therefore Officers consider the development to be contrary to policy OS2; in that it fails to have 

regard to the cumulative impact of the development on the Biodiversity of the area and the Nature 

Improvement Area, and EH3 as the information submitted in inadequate to fully assess the impacts of 

the proposal on the biodiversity of the area.  Additionally the proposal fails to promote the 

conservation, restoration and recreation of priority habitats, ecological networks and the protection and 

recovery of priority species populations within the NIA.  

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.18 In terms of residential amenity, Policy OS2 states that all development should be of a proportionate 

and appropriate scale to its context having regard to the potential cumulative impact of development in 

the locality and be compatible with adjoining uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of 

existing occupants. Policy OS4 states development should not harm the use or enjoyment of land and 

buildings nearby, including living conditions in residential properties.  

 

5.19 This revised application has sought to address the concern relating to visual harm to surrounding 

residential and local amenity. Given the changes to the proposed flood lighting the Council's 

Environmental Health Officer has concluded there is no grounds to object to this proposal as the 

lighting would not amount to a Statutory Nuisance.  Based on this specialist advice, it is Officers view 

that the development would not be so significantly harmful as to warrant refusal on residential amenity 

grounds.   

 

Visual Amenity 

 

5.20 Policy EH8 states that the installation of external lighting will only be permitted where the means of 

lighting is appropriate, unobtrusively sited and would not result in excessive levels of light, and the 

proposal would not have a detrimental impact on local amenity, character of a settlement or wider 

countryside, intrinsically dark landscapes or nature conservation.  It is considered that due to their 

Page 27



height, siting and elevated position of the courts themselves, the proposed floodlighting will be visible 

from numerous directions and public rights of way and given the semi-rural, edge of settlement context 

of the site would have a detrimental impact on the character of Shipton Under Wychwood and the 

intrinsically dark landscape of the AONB. 

 

Other Matters 

 

5.21 The proposal has attracted a lot of responses, both for and against from residents of the village and 

others who live outside the village. It has been stated in many of the representations received that there 

is alternative provision in the area for floodlit tennis courts ie Chipping Norton, Charlbury, Witney and 

Kingham. Whilst Officers appreciate that these locations would be accessed primarily by car, it appears 

that many of the support comments on the application are from those who do not live in the village of 

Shipton in the first instance which suggests that many users of the existing tennis court and club travel 

to Shipton by car. Therefore Officers question the need for the floodlit courts in this location when 

alternative provision is already provided within reasonable distance of Shipton.   

 

5.22 Whilst officers appreciate that the provision of more floodlit tennis courts in the area could be 

beneficial in terms of health and well-being, no evidence has been provided that the other courts in the 

local area are oversubscribed and therefore the need remains a question. The pandemic and the effects 

that it has had on many residents health and wellbeing has been vast however, this is not a planning 

reason and cannot be used as an argument for development in inappropriate locations.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.23 Whilst the potential health and well-being benefits of this development are recognised, in light of 

the above, the application is considered to be unacceptable and fails to comply with policies OS2, OS4, 

EH1, EH3 and EH8 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, and the relevant paragraphs of 

the NPPF 2021. 

 

6. REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

1.  The proposed floodlighting at this prominent site, within the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural 

Beauty, would give rise to an incongruous and intrusive form of development which does not preserve 

or enhance the special qualities and character of the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, 

and when lit would be visually obtrusive within the wider landscape. As such the proposal is considered 

contrary to policies OS2, OS4, EH1 and EH8 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan (2031), Policy CE5 

'Dark Skies' of the Cotswolds conservation Boards Management plan and relevant sections of the NPPF. 

 

2.  It is considered that insufficient ecological survey information, assessment or mitigation information 

has been submitted to enable the Local Planning Authority to fully assess the extent to which species 

and habitats (including bats and great crested newts) that are protected under the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 or 

listed as species/habitats of Principal Importance in s.41 of the Natural Environment and Rural 

Communities Act 2006 may be affected by the proposed development. The Local Planning Authority is 

therefore unable to fully assess the development in respect of the requirements of the National Planning 

Policy Framework (in particular Chapter 15); The Planning Practice Guidance; West Oxfordshire Local 

Plan 2031 Policy EH3, and ODPM Circular 06/2005. The Local Planning Authority is also unable to fully 

assess the proposals in the light of the three derogation tests, as described in the ODPM Circular 

06/2005 and The Conservation of Species and Habitats Regulations 2017. Without sufficient information 

Page 28



the Local Planning Authority may be unable to meets its statutory duty under the Natural Environment 

and Rural Communities Act 2006 to "have regard, …, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity". 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Sarah Hegerty 

Telephone Number: 01993 861713 

Date: 26th January 2022 

Page 29



 
Application Number 21/03859/FUL 

Site Address Vicarage Field 

Church Road 

Milton Under Wychwood 

Chipping Norton 

Oxfordshire 

OX7 6LQ 

 

Date 26th January 2022 

Officer James Nelson 

Officer Recommendations Refuse 

Parish Milton Under Wychwood Parish Council 

Grid Reference 426521 E       218623 N 

Committee Date 7th February 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Erection of a detached dwelling and associated works. 

 

Page 30



Applicant Details: 

Mr And Mrs Holmes 

Vicarage Field 

Church Road 

Milton Under Wychwood 

Oxfordshire 

OX7 6LQ 

 

1. CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council  Milton u Wychwood PC -No objection. 

 

 

WODC Drainage Engineers  No Comment Received. 

 

 

OCC Highways  No objection subject to condition. 

 

 

Conservation Officer  No Comment Received. 

 

 

WODC Env Health - Uplands  No objection. 

 

 

2. Third Party Representations 

 

2.1 No third party representations have been received in relation to this application. 

 

3. Applicant's Case  

 

3.1 The applicant has submitted a Design and Access Statement to support the applicaiton. The main 

points of which are summarised below. A Planning Statement has also been provided, both documents 

are available to view on the Council website.  

 

Design & Access Statement Summary  

 

3.2 The proposal will represent an enhancement to the appearance of the area by designing a new 

dwelling using sympathetic materials to the existing single-storey dwelling.  The new dwelling will 

harmonise with the character of the existing dwelling to the rear of the proposed location and the 

locality. 

 

3.3 The site has already recently been given planning approval for two new dwellings on site, however, 

the clients have decided to retain the existing single storey dwelling to the rear of the proposed new 

dwelling and make alterations to this to meet the needs of our clients as it is more sustainable. 

 

3.4 The proposed scheme has been developed as such to not have any impact on Vicarage Field and its 

setting. The proposed new dwelling would be set back from the main road and partially hidden from 

view through mature hedging and sunken into the ground as the current land slopes away to ensure the 

building is subservient to its surroundings.  

Page 31



 

3.5 The existing access provision is deemed acceptable, providing 3.7m width driveway and the new 

driveway to also be 3.7m width driveway to meet highway standards. 

 

3.6 The new dwelling is in proportion to the size of the plot being designed to be sensitive in scale to 

the existing dwelling and the neighbouring site. The scheme proposes predominantly traditional 

materials with simple extruded linear building forms and roof geometry in keeping with the local 

surroundings, providing a clear legibility of form and architectural language. 

 

3.7 the proposal complies with the material planning considerations. The proposal accords with the 

Development Plan, which supports the principle of new housing within settlements, and the details of 

the scheme do not conflict with other policies. 

 

4. PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H1NEW Amount and distribution of housing 

H2NEW Delivery of new homes 

H4NEW Type and mix of new homes 

H6NEW Existing housing 

T1NEW Sustainable transport 

T4NEW Parking provision 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH8 Environmental protection 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

EH13 Historic landscape character 

NPPF 2021 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5. PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 This application seeks consent for the erection of a detached dwelling and associated works at 

Vicarage Field, Church Road, Milton-under-Wychwood. The application site comprises undeveloped 

land that currently forms part of the garden of Vicarage Field and is within the village of Milton-under-

Wychwood. The land is within the Cotswolds AONB and bordered to the north by the Grade II Listed 

St Simon and St Jude's Church and to the south by Heathfield House. In addition, to the west of the 

church are the Lychgate and Churchyard boundary walls, which are also Grade II Listed.  

 

Relevant Planning History  

 

18/02946/FUL - Demolition of the existing dwelling. The erection of three detached dwellings with 

parking and associated landscaping. - Refused.   

 

19/03060/FUL - Demolition of the existing dwelling. The erection of three detached dwellings with 

parking and associated landscaping- Refused and appeal dismissed.  

Page 32



 

20/02939/FUL - Erection of two replacement detached dwellings with parking and associated landscaping 

- Approved at Planning Sub-Committee. 

 

21/00776/FUL- Erection of two replacement detached dwellings and associated works- Approved.  

 

Principle 

 

5.2 Officers consider that the principle of development has been established by the extant permissions 

onsite and is therefore considered acceptable subject to consideration of the visual/heritage, residential 

amenity, highways, drainage and ecological impacts arising from the proposed scheme against the 

adopted Local Plan. 

 

Siting, Design, Scale and Visual Impact  

 

5.3 Local Plan Policy OS4 states that new development should respect the historic, architectural and 

landscape character of the locality. Section 12 of the revised NPPF reinforces the fundamental nature of 

good design to sustainable development and states that 'development that is not well designed should be 

refused, especially where it fails to reflect local design policies' (Para. 134). The provisions of paragraph 

176 of the NPPF are acknowledged as regards the weight to given to be given to conserving the 

landscape and scenic beauty in the AONB. 

 

5.4 The general principles of OS2 are also relevant to this application notably that development should:  

 

 Be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its context having regard to the potential 

cumulative impact of development in the locality; 

 Form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or the 

character of the area; 

 Be compatible with adjoining uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing 

occupants; 

 Not involve the loss of an area of open space or any other feature that makes an important 

contribution to the character or appearance of the area 

 Conserve and enhance the natural, historic and built environment; and In the AONB, give great 

weight to conserving landscape and scenic beauty 

 

5.5 The site sits immediately south of the Grade II Listed St Simon and St Jude's Church (and associated 

listings) and therefore exhibits the potential to impact its setting. Officers are therefore required to take 

account of section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended 

which states that when considering development which affects a listed building, the local planning 

authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or of any 

features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. The direct effect of the proposed 

development upon the significance of the identified designated heritage assets must be considered in 

accordance with Paragraphs 199, 200 and 202 of the NPPF and Local Plan Policies EH9, EH11 and EH13.  

 

5.6 Development along the eastern side of Church Road and within in the immediate vicinity of the 

church is well set back from the road creating an open and spacious character and semi-rural setting to 

the adjacent church. The application site forms a significant part of this character by virtue of its largely 

undeveloped nature and close proximity to the church resulting in significant intervisibility between the 

listed buildings and the site. Officers therefore conclude that the site provides a positive contribution to 

the church and associated listed buildings.  

Page 33



 

5.7 The proposed dwelling would be sited centrally in the narrowest portion of the plot with the main 

two-storey block set back approximately 40 metres from the road. Whilst this distance is significant, the 

new dwelling would undermine the open character of the site by occupying almost the entire width of 

the plot at the narrowest part of the site. The proposed dwelling is sited closer to the road than the 

westernmost dwelling approved under ref: 21/00776/FUL as well as occupying a greater width of the site 

in comparison. Effort has been made to mitigate the visual prominence of the dwelling by dropping site 

levels by up to 1.8m however, this would require excessive hard landscaping across the western half of 

the site to provide vehicular access, thereby encroaching built development toward Church Road, 

resulting in a harmful urbanising impact upon the semi-rural and open character of the site. The erosion 

of the established character caused by the siting and massing of the proposed dwelling and associated 

hard landscaping would visually dominate the space to the detriment of the setting of the church and the 

established character of the street scene in this locality. The proposal therefore conflicts with Policy 

OS2 in that it fails to respect the existing character of the area resulting in harm to the setting of 

designated heritage assets associated with the church. Given the immediate residential context of the 

site and localised visual impact, no harm is identified to the wider AONB.  

 

5.8 Before applying an overall planning balance, a heritage balance must be carried out under paragraph 

202 of the NPPF under which the harms to the setting of the designated heritage asset in isolation 

should be weighed against any public benefits that would result from the proposal. Officers consider that 

the highly localised and small scale public benefits associated with the construction of a dwelling would 

result in little appreciable public benefit. The benefit of providing an additional housing unit is also 

afforded little weight given the LPA can demonstrate an up to date 5-year housing land supply. 

Therefore, officers conclude that these benefits do not outweigh the identified harm to the designated 

heritage asset, which must be afforded great weight in this balance under NPPF Paragraph 199.  In light 

of this assessment, the proposed development results in deleterious impact upon the setting of the 

Grade II Listed Church in conflict with Local Plan Policies EH9, EH11 and EH13 and guidance contained 

in the NPPF. The proposal also fails to relate successfully to its context as required by the general 

principles of Policy OS2 and the requirements for good design in Policy OS4, the West Oxfordshire 

Design Guide and Section 12 of the NPPF and is therefore unacceptable in heritage and visual impact 

terms.  

 

Residential Amenity Impact  

 

5.9 Local Plan Policy OS2 states that new development should be compatible with adjoining uses and not 

have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants. The importance of minimising adverse 

impacts upon the amenity of future and neighbouring occupiers is reiterated in Policy OS4, the West 

Oxfordshire Design Guide and NPPF paragraph 185.  

 

5.10 The proposed dwelling would be sited in relatively close proximity to Heathfield House to the 

south and the existing dwelling at Vicarage Field. In terms of overbearing and loss of light, the siting of 

the main block of the dwelling would ensure that no significant impacts in this regard are identified. 

Further, the proposed dwelling would be served by adequate amenity space.  

 

5.11 In terms of overlooking, the proposed dwelling would result in first floor windows in the east 

elevation serving habitable rooms directly facing the private amenity space of Vicarage Field. Given that 

the proposed dwelling would be sited directly adjacent to the shared boundary and oriented to face the 

majority of Vicarage Field's private amenity space, this relationship is considered harmful to the amenity 

of future and existing occupiers. No significant impact in this regard would result upon the occupiers of 

Heathfield House.  

Page 34



 

In sum, the proposed dwelling would create an unacceptable level of direct overlooking impact upon the 

occupiers of the existing dwelling at Vicarage Field. The application is therefore contrary to Polices OS2 

and OS4 and local and national guidance.   

 

Highways Impact  

 

5.12 In terms of highways safety, the proposal is to be accessed via the existing access driveway. The 

Local Highway Authority has been consulted and has raised no objection to the proposal and the access, 

subject to condition. 

 

Ecology 

 

5.13 The application has been furnished with an ecology report that have been previously considered 

under recent applications on the site. Given that the development now relates to only part of the site 

put forward under previous applications, some sections of the report (i.e. relating to the existing 

dwelling) are superfluous. However, given the low ecology value of the current site as outlined in the 

report, the application is acceptable in this regard subject to the imposition of planning conditions 

relating to working methods and enhancement features in accordance with Local Plan Policy EH3.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.14 In light of the above, the application is considered to be unacceptable and contrary to policies OS2, 

OS4, EH9, EH11 and EH13 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire 

Design Guide 2016, and the relevant provisions of the NPPF 2021. The application is therefore 

recommended for refusal. 

 

6. REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

1.  The siting, massing and design of the proposed development would result in an adverse urbanising 

impact on this important open space which currently contributes positively to the semi-rural and open 

character and appearance of the area. This would result in significant harm to the setting of adjacent 

Grade II listed buildings comprising St Simon and St Jude's Church and their associated listed structures, 

which is not outweighed by any substantive public benefits. The application is considered to be 

unacceptable and contrary to policies OS2, OS4, EH9, EH11 and EH13 of the adopted West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016, and the relevant provisions of 

the NPPF 2021. 

 

2.  The proposed scheme by reason of its siting and design would have a harmful impact on the 

neighbouring property (Vicarage Field) resulting in a significant loss of privacy caused by overlooking of 

private amenity space. The proposal is therefore considered contrary to Policies OS2, OS4, the West 

Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016, and the relevant provisions of the NPPF 2021. 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: James Nelson 

Telephone Number: 01993 861712 

Date: 26th January 2022 

Page 35



 
Application Number 21/03893/FUL 

Site Address Building Referred To As Asgard South East Of Valhalla 

Church Street 

Stonesfield 

Oxfordshire 

 

 

Date 26th January 2022 

Officer Kelly Murray 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Stonesfield Parish Council 

Grid Reference 439431 E       216860 N 

Committee Date 7th February 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Change of use of detached holiday let to a dwelling with associated parking 

 

 

Page 36



Applicant Details: 

Mr Derek Hobbs 

C/O Agent 

 

1. CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council Stonesfield Parish Council OBJECTS to this application, by making this 

a permanent dwelling this could set precedent for the future building 

line - as this is will set a new building line for a permanent dwelling. In 

addition, this is a further attempt by this householder to expand 

building on the plot 

 

 

2. REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 There has been one comment in support of the application which states that the building is already 

in existence and refers to the availability of parking and amenity space. 

 

2.3 As at the date of this report, the period of time for third party representations had not yet expired.  

Officers will report at the meeting on any representations made and on how their consideration of 

these representations may have affected or changed the recommendations in this report, which are 

made on the basis of policy and the information available to Officers (including the Parish Council's 

objection) at the time of writing. 

 

3. APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The applicant makes the following points in support of the application:- 

 

 It has been demonstrated that the principle of the development is acceptable according to local 

and national planning policies.  The building will maintain its countryside design and appearance 

and will not cause harm to the character of the immediate locality nor the special landscape 

value of the Cotswolds AONB.  

 This application does not seek to extend the residential curtilages of Valhalla or Skyfall. The 

applicant simply wishes to make better use of the existing holiday let to the rear of Valhalla by 

converting it into an independent dwelling, both contributing to the supply of new housing in 

West Oxfordshire (albeit to a small degree) and allowing the 'new' dwelling to be used more 

flexibly, i.e. being sold in the future if desired. 

 The overall scale, height, footprint, and floor space of the building will not be altered as a result 

of this application. Furthermore, the external appearance of the building will remain the same, 

maintaining its current character and style, which is appropriate to the setting. 

 The proposed site plan submitted as part of this application shows separate car parking spaces 

for the 'new' dwelling (to be known as Asgard), as well as a proportionate private amenity space 

separate from Valhalla.  

 

4. PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

H2NEW Delivery of new homes 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

Page 37



The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5. PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 Background Information 

 

5.1.1 This is application seeking unfettered residential use of a building whose current lawful use is as a 

holiday let.  

 

5.1.2 The site lies to the rear of a dwelling known as "Valhalla" and formerly served as its garage.  In 

2019 planning permission was granted to change the use of the garage from an ancillary building to use 

as a holiday let.  Valhalla and its former outbuilding are located on the edge of Stonesfield, within the 

AONB but outside the Conservation Area.  An existing gravel access drive serves the site and adjoins a 

private road which joins Brook Lane and Church Street to the north.  

 

5.1.3 Condition 4 of the consent granted in 2019 provided:- 

  

"The occupation of the accommodation shall be limited to holiday tenancies not to exceed 8 weeks (in 

each case) and no person shall occupy the accommodation in consecutive tenancy periods. 

  

REASON: To protect the amenity of the adjacent dwelling and the building has no independent amenity 

space." 

 

5.1.4 The application has been brought before Members of the Uplands Sub-Committee for 

consideration as the Parish Council have objected to the application. 

 

5.2 Planning History 

 

15/01198/FUL  

Erection of a detached chalet bungalow  

Approved 2nd June 2015  

 

16/00328/FUL  

Erection of detached garage within the curtilage of the approved chalet bungalow  

Allowed on appeal 12th August 2016  

 

18/02816/S73  

No compliance with condition 2 of 15/01198/FUL, so that the amended version of the development 

(chalet bungalow) can be constructed  

Approved 12th November 2018 

 

19/01315/FUL 

Change of use of detached garage into one-bedroom holiday let, including changes to fenestration and 

insertion of new roof lights 

Approved 3rd July 2019 

 

5.2.1 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

Principle 

Page 38



Impact on residential amenity  

Highways 

 

5.3 Principle 

 

5.3.1 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires applications for 

planning permission be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise.  Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides 

that the local planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the development plan, so far as 

material to the application, and to any other material considerations.   

 

5.3.2 The West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 identifies a hierarchy of settlements for new development 

which seeks to steer a significant proportion of future development to the main service centres of 

Witney, Carterton and Chipping Norton.  Stonesfield is identified as a village where limited development 

is considered to be suitable which respects the village character and local distinctiveness and would help 

to maintain the vitality of the community (Policy OS2).  It has a range of services including a post office, 

shop and primary school and is considered to be a reasonably sustainable location for some 

development.  

  

5.3.3 Policy H2 states that new dwellings will be permitted on undeveloped land (residential gardens 

being excluded from the definition of previously developed land within the NPPF) within the built up 

area provided the proposal is in accordance with other policies in the local plan, in particular the general 

principles in Policy OS2.  

 

5.3.4 Paragraph 55 of the NPPF allows for housing in rural areas to be located where it will enhance or 

maintain the vitality and viability of rural communities.  

 

5.3.5 Paragraph 119 of the NPPF states that "Planning policies and decisions should promote an effective 

use of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses, while safeguarding and improving the 

environment and ensuring safe and healthy living conditions", and goes on to say in paragraph 120 (d) 

that planning policies should "promote and support the development of under-utilised land and buildings, 

especially if this would help to meet identified needs for housing where land supply is constrained and 

available sites could be used more effectively". 

 

5.3.6 In the 2016 appeal decision against the Council's refusal of planning permission for the erection of 

the garage, the Inspector pointed out that the permissions for the construction of Valhalla and the 

building now known as Skyfall had established the principle of residential development on the appeal site 

and the plot adjoining.  The inspector also commented on the residential character and appearance of 

the site, for example, the close-boarded wooden fencing along two boundaries, stoned access to the 

rear and a driveway through the garden area and stated that this change was an inevitable consequence 

of the permission already given.  

 

5.3.7 In view of the sustainability of the location and the established residential character of the site, 

Officers consider that the principle of residential use of a building already constructed and adapted for 

domestic use, is, subject to the considerations set out below, in line with policy and acceptable. 

 

5.4 Residential Amenities 

 

5.4.1 Policy OS2 of the WOLP provides that all development should be compatible with adjoining uses 

and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants.  In this regard, the former garage is 

Page 39



adjacent to the boundary of an area of outlying land belonging to the neighbouring property and it is 

sited at a considerable distance from the former host dwelling, Valhalla and the other neighbouring 

dwellings.  There are no windows located within elevations that would give rise to overlooking or loss 

of privacy.  Given this and its location set away from other dwellings, it is not considered that the 

development would adversely affect the residential amenity of the neighbouring properties.     

 

5.4.2 The application plan designates two parking spaces and an amenity area taken from land already in 

domestic use and which in Officers' view is commensurate with the accommodation provided by the 

building.  The former host dwelling, Valhalla, will retain more than sufficient space as a garden and for 

parking at least two vehicles. 

 

5.4.3 Were Members minded to resolve to grant consent, it is proposed that a similar condition as 

imposed for Valhalla and Skyfall be imposed to prevent the operation of the GPDO allowing new 

windows, extensions, outbuildings or further hardstanding being installed or constructed.  This would 

enable the LPA to consider carefully any further development proposals within the curtilage of the new 

dwelling that might affect neighbours' privacy or otherwise have a harmful impact. 

 

5.5 Highway 

 

5.5.1 The existing access arrangements will be retained and parking for the property is to be provided.  

It is not anticipated that the proposal would increase traffic movement within the site. 

 

5.6 Conclusion 

 

5.6.1 The application involves no building operations and solely a change of use.  Officers consider that it 

would be difficult to defend an application to remove the condition restricting use as a holiday let due to 

the provision of sufficient amenity space and parking, both of which areas are already in domestic use, 

and the ample distance between dwellings.  There would be no adverse impact on the residential 

amenity of neighbouring properties by reason of overlooking, overbearingness or loss of light.  As a new 

dwelling in a sustainable location for the provision of some new development, this application accords 

with Council policy.  For the reasons given above, this application is recommended for conditional 

approval.  

 

 

6. CONDITIONS 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 

of this planning permission.  

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 as 

amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 

(England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), 

no windows, extensions, outbuildings or further hardstanding shall be installed or constructed unless 

expressly authorised in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: Control is needed to maintain the character of the building, the location, and to protect the 

privacy of neighbouring property. 

 

Page 40



3. The landscaping scheme on plan 196315/2:2A showing planting and boundary treatments which was 

submitted pursuant to condition 5 of the permission granted under 16/00328/FUL shall continue to be 

maintained so far as it relates to the application site, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: In the interest of the character and appearance of the site. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Kelly Murray 

Telephone Number: 01993 861674 

Date: 26th January 2022 

Page 41



 
Application Number 21/04066/HHD 

Site Address 2 Church Street 

Fifield 

Chipping Norton 

Oxfordshire 

OX7 6HF 

 

Date 26th January 2022 

Officer Briony Farmer 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Fifield Parish Council 

Grid Reference 423992 E       218748 N 

Committee Date 7th February 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Installation of combined air source heat pump and air condition unit (Retrospective) 

 

 

Page 42



Applicant Details: 

Mrs A Morales 

2 Church Street 

Fifield 

Chipping Norton 

Oxfordshire 

OX7 6HF 

 

1. CONSULTATIONS 

 

WODC Env Health - Uplands Mr ERS Pollution Consultation I have no objection in principle. 

 

 

Parish Council  No Comment Received. 

 

 

2. Third Party Representations 

 

2.1 One objection comment has been received with regards to neighbourliness, policy and principle. 

 

2.2 Two supporting comments have been received with regards to environmental benefits and lack of 

impact upon neighbouring amenity. 

 

3. Applicants Case   

 

3.1 The applicant has submitted a Planning Statement to support the application. Main points of this are 

summarised as set out below. The documents submitted for this application are available to view on the 

West Oxfordshire District Council website.  

 

Planning Statement Summary 

 

3.2 The application site relates to an existing unlisted semi-detached cottage which has been subject to 

recent alterations and extensions. 

 

3.3 The planning application seeks retrospective planning permission for the installation of a ASHP which 

is manufactured for domestic use and considered both energy and noise efficient. 

 

3.4 The ASHP is located in the furthest location from the host dwelling and neighbouring dwelling and is 

considered to be discreet and set back. 

 

3.5 The ASHP is currently located 310mm from the neighbouring residential boundary. 

 

3.6 The ASHP is not visible from or to the nearby Grade II listed property 'Old Housing' located on the 

opposite side of Church Street. 

 

4. PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4NEW High quality design 

Page 43



H6NEW Existing housing 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

EH8 Environmental protection 

NPPF 2021 

NATDES National Design Guide 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

Planning Assessment 

 

5.1 The planning application seeks householder planning consent for the installation of a combined Air 

Source Heat Pump (ASHP) (retrospective) at Jasmine Cottage, 2 Church Street, Fifield. The application 

site is situated in the Cotswold AONB and relates to a semi-detached two-storey property situated in 

the South of the village. 

 

Principle 

 

5.2 The principle of the proposed development within the curtilage of the residential property is 

considered acceptable subject to careful consideration of the residential amenity and visual impacts 

weighed alongside the local development plan (West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031).  

 

5.3 Policy OS3, Prudent use of natural resources, of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 states that 

development should show consideration to minimising energy demands and energy loss through design, 

layout, orientation, landscaping materials and the use of technology. As part of the application, details on 

the ASHP unit were submitted; it is acknowledged that the ASHP will facilitate lower CO2 emissions. 

Therefore, the addition of an ASHP to the host dwelling gains officers support due to the awareness and 

contribution to sustainability. 

 

Residential Amenity 

 

5.4 The impact of the development on residential amenity has been carefully considered. The ASHP is 

located on the South elevation of a semi-detached outbuilding for Jasmine Cottage and neighbouring 

property, Flora's Cottage. The ASHP is located within 1m of the boundary line, henceforth requires 

planning permission in line with Class G of the General Permitted Development Order 2015 (as 

amended). If is was repositioned slightly further from the wall it would not fall within planning control as 

it would benefit from those permitted development rights. 

 

5.5 The ASHP is not visible within the street scene and thus bears no impact, nor harm on the Grade II 

listed properties situated to the North on the opposite side of Church Street. Whilst officers 

acknowledge that the ASHP does generate some noise for neighbouring property Flora's Cottage, the 

ASHP has been located in a position that does not impact upon the amenity of the primary dwelling. 

Taking this into consideration, officers are of the opinion that the development does not give rise to 

levels of harm in terms of neighbouring amenity that would warrant the refusal of this application.  

 

Visual Impacts 

 

5.6 As this site is located within an AONB, Paragraph 176, Section 15 (Conserving and enhancing the 

natural environment) of the NPPF needs to be considered. This provides indication to the weight that 

should be given with regards to conserving the landscape and scenic beauty in the AONB.  

 

Page 44



5.7 As outlined above the ASHP is not visible within the street scene. The ASHP is partly sheltered by 

the boundary wall and is situated to the rear (South) elevation of the outbuilding. Given the siting, scale 

and purpose of the development, officers consider that the ASHP will not impact upon visual amenity. 

Officers conclude that the development will cause no material impact, nor harm to the Cotswold 

AONB and can therefore be considered acceptable on the grounds of visual impacts.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.8 The above provides a detailed assessment of the proposed development. In conclusion, officers 

consider that the proposal is considered acceptable on its merits and complies with Policies OS2, OS3, 

OS4, H6, EH1 and EH8 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

2016, the NPPF 2019 and other relevant material considerations. Therefore, this application is 

recommended for approval. 

 

6. CONDITIONS 

 

1. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Briony Farmer 

Telephone Number: 01993 861672 

Date: 26th January 2022 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



DELGAT 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS  

 

Application Types Key 

 

Suffix 

 

 Suffix  

ADV Advertisement Consent LBC Listed Building Consent 

CC3REG County Council Regulation 3 LBD Listed Building Consent - Demolition 

CC4REG County Council Regulation 4 OUT Outline Application 

CM County Matters RES Reserved Matters Application 

FUL Full Application S73 Removal or Variation of Condition/s 

HHD Householder Application POB Discharge of Planning Obligation/s 

CLP 

CLASSM 

 

HAZ 

PN42 

 

PNT 

NMA 

WDN 

Certificate of Lawfulness Proposed 

Change of Use – Agriculture to 

Commercial 

Hazardous Substances Application 

Householder Application under Permitted 

Development legislation. 

Telecoms Prior Approval 

Non Material Amendment 

Withdrawn 

 

CLE 

CND 

PDET28 

PN56 

POROW 

TCA 

TPO 

 

FDO 

Certificate of Lawfulness Existing 

Discharge of Conditions 

Agricultural Prior Approval 

Change of Use Agriculture to Dwelling 

Creation or Diversion of Right of Way 

Works to Trees in a Conservation Area 

Works to Trees subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order 

Finally Disposed Of 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

 

Description 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

Description 

APP 

REF 

P1REQ 

P3APP 

P4APP 

Approve 

Refuse  

Prior Approval Required 

Prior Approval Approved 

Prior Approval Approved 

RNO 

ROB 

P2NRQ 

P3REF 

P4REF 

Raise no objection  

Raise Objection  

Prior Approval Not Required 

Prior Approval Refused 

Prior Approval Refused 

 

 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS 

Week Ending 21st December 2021 

 

  

Application Number.  

 

Ward. 

 

 Decision. 

 

 

1.  21/00426/CND Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Condition 10 (drainage) of permission 17/01067/FUL 

Land North West Of 18 London Lane Ascott Under Wychwood 

Kingerlee Homes Ltd 

 

 

2.  21/00531/FUL Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Construction of detached security lodge together with associated works. (Amended Plans). 

Dean Mill Dean Chipping Norton 

Mr James Buchan 

 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 5



DELGAT 
 

3.  21/00872/S73 Chipping Norton APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 19/02946/FUL to allow changes to the design 

of Unit 1 and alterations to the communal garaging. (Amended plans). 

Heythrop Hunt Kennels Kennels Lane Chipping Norton 

Nutbourne 

 

 

4.  21/02384/CND Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Discharge of condition 3 (details of refuse vehicle turning), 4 (materials specified), 5 (external 

wall sample panel), 6 (roof sample panel), 7 (details of all external windows and doors), 8 

(window and door frames), 9 (Trees in Relation to design, demolition and construction), 11 

(bat roosting features and bird nesting opportunities) and 14 (super fast broadband service) of 

planning permission 18/02148/S73 

Long Close Oxford Road Woodstock 

Mr Lewis 

 

 

5.  21/02458/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Single storey rear extension. 

24 Park Street Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Caroline Beaumont 

 

 

6.  21/02459/LBC Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Single storey rear extension, internal works to provide ensuite 

24 Park Street Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Caroline Beaumont 

 

 

7.  21/02533/CND Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Discharge of condition 14 (Rapid EV charging points) of planning permission 19/02902/FUL 

2 Witney Road Long Hanborough Witney 

- 

 

 

8.  21/02653/CND Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Discharge of condition 6 (site investigate of the nature and extent of contamination) of 

planning permission 20/03118/FUL 

Lower Buildings Green End Chadlington 

Mr O Corbett 

 

 

Page 48



DELGAT 
 

9.  21/02945/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Rear extension of ground and first floor. General refurbishment and internal alterations. 

(Amended plans). 

Lenthall Cottage 17 Sheep Street Burford 

Roger & Carina Sales 

 

 

10.  21/02946/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Rear extension of ground and first floor. General refurbishment and internal alterations. 

Lenthall Cottage 17 Sheep Street Burford 

Roger & Carina Sales 

 

 

11.  21/03134/CND Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 4 (schedule of materials), 6 (details of external windows and doors) 

and 20 (hard and soft landscaping scheme) of planning permission 18/03403/FUL 

Olivers Garage 80 - 82 Main Road Long Hanborough 

Rectory Homes Ltd 

 

 

12.  21/03235/HHD Woodstock and Bladon REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single storey rear extension 

95 Manor Road Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mrs N Cosgrove 

 

 

13.  21/03252/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

External alterations to install automated vehicular gates. 

The Mill Coach House 95 Witney Street Burford 

Mr M Percival 

 

 

14.  21/03291/NMA Chadlington and Churchill REF 

  

Conversion of redundant farm buildings and the erection of new buildings to provide five 

dwelling houses for use as second homes/holiday homes together with an indoor amenity 

area, construction of an underground car parking area and outdoor swimming pool. 

Demolition of redundant farm buildings and associated works (non-material amendment to 

allow external and internal alterations to units 4 and 5, and residents amenity building). 

The Barns Kingham Oxfordshire 

Mrs C Cash 

 

 

Page 49



DELGAT 
 

15.  21/03369/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of garage to create additional living accommodation. 

Manor Barn Main Road Fawler 

Mr Robin Sheppard 

 

 

16.  21/03370/LBC Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external works to convert the garage to living accommodation. 

Manor Barn Main Road Fawler 

Mr Robin Sheppard 

 

 

17.  21/03384/S73 Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of permission 18/02054/FUL to allow the addition of an attached 

garage to dwelling no.1 (part retrospective) 

Site Of 41 Manor Road Bladon 

Mr Mark Baker 

 

 

18.  21/03387/OUT Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Outline application for the erection of one dwelling together with associated parking. 

Garages East Of 25 Roosevelt Road Long Hanborough 

Cottsway Housing 

 

 

19.  21/03394/CND Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 6 (details of all external windows and doors) and 7 (sectional details 

of the proposed roof insulation) of planning permission 20/00725/LBC 

4 West Street Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Grant & Milne 

 

 

20.  21/03435/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

New link extension and barn alterations. 

Hensington Farmhouse 7 Banbury Road Woodstock 

Mr & Mrs Houghton 

 

 

Page 50



DELGAT 
 

21.  21/03436/LBC Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

New link extension and barn alterations. 

Hensington Farmhouse 7 Banbury Road Woodstock 

Mr & Mrs Houghton 

 

 

22.  21/03432/CND Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 4 (details of all external windows and doors) of planning permission 

20/00724/FUL 

4 West Street Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Grant & Milne 

 

 

23.  21/03469/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of rear single storey garden room extension and garage conversion (amended plans). 

15 Ticknell Piece Road Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs S Holmberg 

 

 

24.  21/03495/FUL Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of 8 new electric car chargers. 

Estate Office Blenheim Park Woodstock 

Ottilie Harris 

 

 

25.  21/03496/LBC Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of 8 new electric car chargers. 

Estate Office Blenheim Park Woodstock 

Ottilie Harris 

 

 

26.  21/03513/S73 Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 and removal of condition 6 (relating to windows that serve en-suites) 

of permission 18/00890/FUL, to allow the amendment of house design and design and location 

of garage. Removal of condition 12 (also of permission 18/00890/FUL) to allow for ancillary 

and residential services. 

Roselyne 60 Lower End Leafield 

Mr Mikael Armstrong 

 

 

Page 51



DELGAT 
 

27.  21/03504/HHD Carterton South APP 

  

Single storey extension to front to form ground floor toilet and wheelchair access (amended) 

63 Mayfield Close Carterton Oxfordshire 

Miss S Davies 

 

 

28.  21/03505/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Garage conversion and single storey side extension (amended drawings) 

24 Hurdeswell Long Hanborough Witney 

Salazar-Perez 

 

 

29.  21/03506/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Refurbishment and internal layout adjustments of the Cottage within the curtilage of Combe 

House. 

Combe House Park Road Combe 

Mr and Mrs Vine 

 

 

30.  21/03507/LBC Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Refurbishment, alterations and internal layout adjustments of the Cottage within the curtilage 

of Combe House 

Combe House Park Road Combe 

Mr and Mrs Vine 

 

 

31.  21/03518/NMA Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Erection of a two storey side extension, single storey rear extension and conversion of loft 

space with rear dormer (Non Material Amendment to allow change of roof tiles from clay to 

slate) 

59 Wroslyn Road Freeland Witney 

Mrs Gabriella Evans 

 

 

32.  21/03521/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Discharge of condition 5 (external doors and windows, new stair and lift, infill's and partitions 

and new openings details) of planning permission 21/00509/LBC 

Heythrop Park Hotel Heythrop Park Heythrop 

Warner Leisure Hotels 

 

 

Page 52



DELGAT 
 

33.  21/03522/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Discharge of condition 6 (external doors and windows details) of planning permission 

21/00508/FUL 

Heythrop Park Hotel Heythrop Park Heythrop 

Warner Leisure Hotels 

 

 

34.  21/03535/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed pool building housing leisure facilities, proposed external swimming pool with 

landscaping works and conversion of existing garage attic into ancillary accommodation to 

main house 

Hackers House Junction Road Churchill 

Mr L Vaughan 

 

 

35.  21/03537/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal alterations to include the part removal of the wall between kitchen and family room 

Brasenose Cottage Church End Great Rollright 

Ms Laura Freeman And Mr Andrew Ryan 

 

 

36.  21/03538/CND Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Discharge of condition 7 (Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation) of planning 

permission 21/01582/FUL 

Middlefield House Lower Whitehill Tackley 

Mr and Mrs Geday 

 

 

37.  21/03539/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of existing carport to self contained annexe. 

Brasenose Cottage Church End Great Rollright 

Ms Laura Freeman And Mr Andrew Ryan 

 

 

38.  21/03540/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to convert the existing carport to a self contained annexe. 

Brasenose Cottage Church End Great Rollright 

Ms Laura Freeman And Mr Andrew Ryan 

 

 

Page 53



DELGAT 
 

39.  21/03541/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Home office in part of garden 

Brasenose Cottage Church End Great Rollright 

Ms  and Mr Laura and Andrew Freeman and Ryan 

 

 

40.  21/03542/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Re-building/alterations to existing conservatory. 

Brasenose Cottage Church End Great Rollright 

Ms And Mr Laura And Andrew Freeman And Ryan 

 

 

41.  21/03543/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Re-building/alterations to existing conservatory. 

Brasenose Cottage Church End Great Rollright 

Ms And Mr Laura And Andrew Freeman And Ryan 

 

 

42.  21/03546/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Two storey rear extension - revisions to approved plans 

Medlar Cottage 26 - 27 Taynton Burford 

Mr Mark Lea 

 

 

43.  21/03547/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Two storey rear extension - revisions to approved plans 

Medlar Cottage 26 - 27 Taynton Burford 

Mr Mark Lea 

 

 

44.  21/03567/CLP Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Certificate of lawfulness (formation of habitable room in roofspace with rear and front velux 

rooflights) 

21 Quarry Close Enstone Chipping Norton 

Mr Lambert 

 

 

Page 54



DELGAT 
 

45.  21/03568/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of detached double garage to home gym with shower room, loft storage and 

home-office. Alterations including: replacement garage doors with new windows plus 

replacement windows and the side door in their existing openings and to match the property 

and new velux rooflight 

Leaze Cottage Barns Lane Burford 

Mr and Mrs Paul and Sue Riley 

 

 

46.  21/03570/S73 Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 and removal of condition 8 of planning permission 17/01067/FUL to 

allow conversion of area over garage into a home office (plots 2 and 4) and changes to 

fenestration (plots 1 and 5) whilst still maintaining all amendments relating to design changes, 

repositioning of access road and alterations to boundary treatments as previously approved 

under 21/00542/S73. 

Land North West Of 18 London Lane Ascott Under Wychwood 

Kingerlee Homes Ltd 

 

 

47.  21/03577/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Single storey rear extension and front porch 

16 New Road Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr and Mrs Simon Epstein 

 

 

48.  21/03578/LBC Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of various replacement windows 

Pratts Cottage The Green Leafield 

Ms Sarah Harston 

 

 

49.  21/03593/S73 Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 20/03527/FUL to allow for the loft conversion 

(including the insertion of 1 roof light and 2 gable windows) to plot 1 and for the loft 

conversion (including the insertion of 1 roof light and 2 rear dormers) together with the 

erection rear orangery to plot 2. 

Farm Buildings Farley Lane Stonesfield 

Mr Brendan O'Brien 

 

 

Page 55



DELGAT 
 

50.  21/03595/FUL Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Conversion of existing barn and change of use of land from agricultural to private equestrian 

use. Works to include extensions to existing barn and the installation of an outdoor horse 

arena and lunge pen. 

Boulters Grange Churchill Road Chipping Norton 

Ms Jade Ellery And Mr Sean Walkinshaw 

 

 

51.  21/03604/CLP The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Certificate of Lawfulness (replace existing kitchen door in North East elevation with new 

'fixed shut' door with glazing). 

Fox Cottage 4 Manor Farm Cottages Manor Road 

Mrs Darcy F Champion 

 

 

52.  21/03614/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Full width single storey rear extension, part two storey rear extension, new roof and attic 

conversion with dormers, new porch and render to existing artificial stone walls. (Amended). 

Broadlands Churchfields Stonesfield 

A. Gordon and A. Hautau 

 

 

53.  21/03626/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a single storey extension 

Paupers Barn 38 Plum Lane Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr Jack Ogden 

 

 

54.  21/03627/RES Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Reserved Matters application for the erection of two dwellings with associated garages and 

landscaping, pursuant to outline permission 19/03196/OUT 

Cotswold Fuels Railway Yard Station Road Ascott Under Wychwood 

Palladian Properties 

 

 

55.  21/03630/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Conversion of attic space 

5 Pittick Close Long Hanborough Witney 

Mr and Mrs Power 

 

 

Page 56



DELGAT 
 

56.  21/03647/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Single storey side extension, new doors and windows, internal works, and external works to 

create side access and relocate oil tank 

2 Orchard Rise Burford Oxfordshire 

Mr Racher 

 

 

57.  21/03648/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolish front porch extension and construct single storey extension 

3 Church Street Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Smith 

 

 

58.  21/03677/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of single storey rear extension, and construction of a two storey outbuilding 

comprising double garage and office/bedroom with first floor accommodation above and a 

glazed link to dwelling. 

Bramleys Oxford Road Enstone 

Mrs Harriet Day 

 

 

59.  21/03693/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of folding sliding doors 

Springfield House Mawles Lane Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr. James Fouracre 

 

 

60.  21/03694/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed rear kitchen extension, a covered rear verandah and an additional bedroom with 

en-suite. Addition of conservation rooflights and dormers and removing a redundant chimney 

Honeystone House Sidings Road Churchill 

Laurie Vandalm and Chris Gamble 

 

 

61.  21/03699/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

General refurbishment, reconfiguration and extensions of the existing dwelling including new 

reception and studio spaces and connecting glazed link. External works include a new carport 

sheltered terraces and general landscaping 

Sycamore Farm Mill End Chadlington 

Ms Kim Mills 

 

 

Page 57



DELGAT 
 

62.  21/03700/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Single storey side extension and rear and a two storey rear extension replacing a collection of 

existing extensions. Alterations to the existing wall finishes 

41 New Road Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Rutter 

 

 

63.  21/03714/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to include the erection of a replacement porch and the addition of traditional 

render to the walls of the existing extension. 

Forge Cottage 3 Millwood End Long Hanborough 

Mr And Mrs Rand 

 

 

64.  21/03731/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a greenhouse 

4 Graces Court The Slade Charlbury 

Mrs Kathryn Gay Crosby 

 

 

65.  21/03736/CND Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 5 (active bird's nest survey), condition 7 (external lighting details) 

condition 8 (details of integrated bat roosting and bird nesting features) of planning 

permission 21/00836/FUL 

The Leazings Witney Lane Leafield 

Mr Steven Taylor 

 

 

66.  21/03737/HHD The Bartons REF 

  

Single storey porch extension and rear extension. Garage conversion into habitable rooms. 

2 Rectory Crescent Middle Barton Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs Frost 

 

 

67.  21/03743/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Construction of a tennis court with associated landscaping works. 

Cornwell Glebe Cornwell Chipping Norton 

Mr Wray 

 

 

Page 58



DELGAT 
 

68.  21/03748/S73 Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 20/02295/HHD to allow the insertion of an 

additional window in rear elevation and omittance of window from side elevation of annexe. 

(Retrospective). 

Old Rectory Little Compton Lane Chastleton 

Mrs Jill Virgin 

 

 

69.  21/03756/CND Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 6 (details of windows and doors) of planning permission 18/01951/FUL 

Manor Barn Main Road Fawler 

Mr Robin Sheppard 

 

 

70.  21/03757/NMA Woodstock and Bladon WDN 

  

Removal of existing rear extensions. Erection of two storey and single storey rear extensions 

along with the replacement of existing dormers and construction of porches to the front and 

side (non-material amendment to allow changes to fenestration, dormer and roof lantern 

designs, the use of stone finish in place of brick, and the removal of chimney-like projection 

from rear extension and replace with flush rooflight). 

11 Oxford Road Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Ms Jeannine Hall 

 

 

71.  21/03759/CLP Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Certificate of lawfulness (erection of detached garden room). 

Belmont 12 Heath Lane Bladon 

Mr And Mrs R Tyler 

 

 

72.  21/03777/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of a replacement porch 

Dorden Cottage Lidstone Chipping Norton 

Mr Matthew Weedon 

 

 

Page 59



DELGAT 
 

73.  21/03795/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of rear and side extensions together with conversion of existing attic space to create 

additional living space over two floors. Construction of a new entrance porch. 

Cranbrook Stonesfield Lane Charlbury 

Ms J Youngson 

 

 

74.  21/03801/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Proposed garage block 

Black Knap House Priory Road Heythrop 

Mr Devine 

 

 

75.  21/03802/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

  

Remove existing and erect single storey rear extension. 

31B Walterbush Road Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Paul Cattell 

 

 

76.  21/03807/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement of existing garden shed with slightly larger garden shed. 

3 Church Mews Church Street Bladon 

Ms Frances Stevenson 

 

 

77.  21/03813/CND Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Discharge of condition 5 (access between the land and highway) of planning permission 

20/00017/S73 

Adina Woodstock Road Stonesfield 

Mr James Wiltshire 

 

 

78.  21/03838/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a two storey side extension and construction of a replacement detached garage 

with home office above 

Thorsbrook Taston Chipping Norton 

Turner And Calow 

 

 

Page 60



DELGAT 
 

79.  21/03844/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Discharge of condition 6 (site wide drainage scheme) of planning permission 21/02799/FUL 

Soho Farmhouse Great Tew Chipping Norton 

Soho House UK Limited 

 

 

80.  21/03865/FUL Freeland and Hanborough REF 

  

Construction of replacement dwelling and detached garage building with home office/studio 

above together with associated works. 

Park House Park Lane Long Hanborough 

Mr And Mrs McGovern 

 

 

81.  21/03867/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

  

Extensions and alterations including: two storey extension, single storey garden room and an 

oak-framed two storey glazed staircase to the rear of the dwellinghouse. Erection of 3 bay 

garage plus all associated landscaping works (amended plans). 

Wayhill Spelsbury Road Charlbury 

Mr and Mrs Ambrose 

 

 

82.  21/03892/NMA Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of 3 dwellings and associated works (non-material amendment to allow changes to 

the internal layouts, the kitchen/garden door positions to Units 1 and 2, and to increase the 

utility room at Unit 3). (Amended) 

 

Information also sumitted to discharge conditions 5, 6, 8, 9 & 10 of consented application 

21/00398. 

Land South Of Rock Hill Chipping Norton 

Mr C Chesterton 

 

 

83.  21/03908/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed wooden building, with a sloping roof, attached to the side of the house to be used 

as a hobby room (retrospective) 

5 The Leys Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Ms Caroline Chappell 

 

 

Page 61



DELGAT 
 

84.  21/03909/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Construction of a dormer extension to rear elevation together with insertion of additional 

roof lights to existing roof 

22 Heath Lane Bladon Woodstock 

Mr Ahmed Amim 

 

 

85.  21/03914/S73 Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 3 of planning permission 21/01396/HHD to allow the use of lime 

render instead of stone 

11 Heath Lane Bladon Woodstock 

Mr And Mrs N Horan 

 

 

86.  21/03952/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Erection of a single storey rear extension 

Dougden Frog Lane Milton Under Wychwood 

Rev Karen Rozzello 

 

 

87.  21/03953/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Erection of a single storey extension to front and side 

5 Walkers Close Freeland Witney 

Mr Oliver Puddle 

 

 

88.  21/03958/PDET28 Chipping Norton P2NRQ 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of building for storage of tools and equipment to help manage the existing and 

proposed forestry and planting. 

Land North East Of Station Yard The Leys Chipping Norton 

Mr James Byrne 

 

 

89.  21/03991/NMA Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Erection of two semi-detached dwellings together with associated works and access (Non 

material amendment to allow a PV panel array utilising North East and South West Facing 

roof slopes). 

Former Village Hall Grove Road Bladon 

Dene Vanbrugh Unit Trust 

 

 

Page 62



DELGAT 
 

90.  21/03998/NMA Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Siting of six holiday lodges (non material amendment to expand the list of approved plans 

referred to under condition 2 of planning permission 18/03199/FUL to include additional 

specifications for the type of holiday lodge to be stationed) 

Merryweather Farm Hook Norton Road Chipping Norton 

White 

 

 

91.  21/04104/PDET28 Chadlington and Churchill P1REQ 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of agricultural storage/general purpose barns. 

Mount Farm Junction Road Churchill 

W Hollest 

 

 

 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	4 Applications for Development
	5 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions

